Nuclear Development
244 Chestnut Street, Salem, NJ 08079

& PSEG

Power LLC

ND-2015-0008
May 21,2015

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
ATTN: Document Control Desk
Washington, DC 20555-0001

Subject: PSEG Early Site Permit Application
Docket No. 52-043
Information in Support of Early Site Permit Application

References: 1) PSEG Power, LLC Letter No. ND-2010-0073 to U.S. NRC, -
Application for Early Site Permit for the PSEG Site, dated May 25,
2010

2) PSEG Power, LLC Letter No. ND-2010-0014 to U.S. NRC,
Submittal of Revision 3 of the Early Site Permit Application for the
PSEG Site, dated March 31, 2014

The purpose of this letter is to provide supplemental information in support of the PSEG
Early Site Permit (ESP) Application. As a result of the continuing consultation under
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act for the PSEG Early Site Permit
Application Project in Salem County, New Jersey, NRC staff requested that PSEG
perform additional field assessments and literature searches to document four potential
architectural resources identified in the area of potential effect (APE). These resources
include:

e 116 Mason Point Road

e Isaac Smart House (489 Salem-Fort Elfsborg Road)

o 349 Fort Elfsborg Road (sometimes known as the Sarah Mason House)
e Joseph Darkin House (85 Amwellbury Road)
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Commission

PSEG performed the requested assessments and literature searches during May 2015.
The results of these additional field assessments and literature searches supplement
the assessment provided in the Historic Properties Visual Impact Assessment PSEG
Early Site Permit Application, Salem, New Jersey (MACTEC December 2009) and
Addendum to the 2009 Historic Properties Visual Impact Assessment (AKRF 2012, and
are provided in Enclosure 1 to this letter.

If any additional information is needed, please contact David Robillard, PSEG Nuclear
Development Licensing Engineer, at (856) 339-7914.

There are no regulatory commitments in this letter.

Sincerely,

Larie Dl

James Mallon

Early Site Permit Manager
Nuclear Development
PSEG Power, LLC

Enclosure 1: AKRF Report: PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New
Jersey: Four Intensive Level Survey Forms, dated May 20, 2015

cc.  USNRC Project Manager, Division of New Reactor Licensing, PSEG Site
(w/o enclosure)
USNRC Environmental Project Manager, Division of New Reactor Licensing
(w/enclosure)
USNRC Region I, Regional Administrator (w/o enclosure)
New Jersey Historic Preservation Officer (w/enclosure)



PSEG Letter ND-2015-0008, dated May 21, 2015

ENCLOSURE 1

AKRF Report: PSEG Early Site Permit Application,
Salem County, New Jersey: Four Intensive Level Survey Forms,
dated May 20, 2015
(91 pages)



Environmental and Planning Consultants

440 Park Avenue South
7th Floor

New York, NY 10016
tel: 212 696-0670

fax: 212 213-3191
www.akrf.com

May 20, 2015

Mr. James Mallon

PSEG Power, LLC

244 Chestnut Street
Salem, NJ 08709

Re: PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New Jersey
Four Intensive Level Survey Forms

Dear Mr. Mallon:

As a result of the continuing consultation under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act for the PSEG
Early Site Permit Application Project in Salem County, New Jersey, PSEG requested that AKRF perform additional
field assessments and literature searches to document four potential architectural resources identified in the APE.
These resources include:

e 116 Mason Point Road

e [saac Smart House (489 Salem-Fort Elfsborg Road)

e 349 Fort Elfsborg Road (sometimes known as the Sarah Mason House)
e Joseph Darkin House (85 Amwellbury Road)

The results of the additional field assessments and literature searches will be used to supplement the assessment
provided in the Historic Properties Visual Impact Assessment PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem, New
Jersey (MACTEC December 2009) and Addendum to the 2009 Historic Properties Visual Impact Assessment
(AKRF 2012).

In accordance with this request, AKRF is submitting the enclosed documentation of these resources. The enclosed
documents were completed by a qualified architectural historian in accordance with the NJHPO guidelines for
Intensive Level Architectural Resources Surveys. All four of these properties have been recommended for eligibility
for the New Jersey and National Registers of Historic Places.

PSEG also requested an assessment of the potential for the proposed project to affect these four resources and one
additional resource, the Samuel and Sarah Nicholson House at 153 Amwellbury Road. The latter was previously
listed on the New Jersey and National Registers of Historic Places but was not accurately identified in the 2009
MACTEC Assessment. |

An additional field visit to each of these properties was made in April 2015 and the potential visibility of the
proposed project, in particular the proposed new cooling tower, was assessed based on the visibility of the existing
cooling tower from each property. The results of this assessment are provided below.

116 Mason Point Road

The house at 116 Mason Point Road is located on the north side of Mason Point Road, approximately 3 miles
northeast of the existing facility (see Figure 1). Looking south from the house and property across Mason Point
Road, the existing cooling tower is plainly visible in the distance due to the flat and open landscape between the
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house and the facility (see Figure 6, Photo 1). Therefore, the proposed new cooling tower would also likely be
plainly visible in the distance from the house at 116 Mason Point Road. The change in the overall setting of the
house that would occur with the addition of a second cooling tower is expected to be minimal as compared to the
current conditions. However, the existing cooling tower is not in keeping with the historic agricultural setting of the
house and the construction of a new cooling tower would add a further intrusive element into this landscape.
Therefore, using the methodology for evaluating indirect effects discussed with NJHPO staff members during a
March 2015 on-site meeting with PSEG, SHPO, and NRC, the construction of a new cooling tower could result in
an adverse indirect effect on the house at 116 Mason Point Road.

Isaac Smart House (489 Salem-Fort Elfsborg Road)

The Isaac Smart House, located at 489 Salem-Fort Elfsborg Road is located on the north side of Mason Point Road,
over 4 miles northeast of the existing facility (see Figure 2). Looking south from the house and property across
Salem-Fort Elfsborg Road, the existing cooling tower could not be seen (see Figure 6, Photo 2). It would appear
that despite the flat and open landscape between the house and the facility, intervening trees, land, and other
obstructions do not currently afford a view from the house to existing facility. Therefore, it is not expected that a
new tower would be visible from the house, and no potential for adverse effects on the Isaac Smart House have
been identified.

349 Fort Elfsborg Road (sometimes known as the Sarah Mason House

The house at 349 Fort Elfsborg Road is located on the south side of Fort Elfsborg Road, approximately 3 miles
northeast of the existing facility (see Figure 3). Looking south from the rear of the house, the existing cooling tower
is visible in the distance due to the flat and open landscape between the house and the facility (see Figure 7, Photo
3). Therefore, the proposed new cooling tower would also likely be visible in the distance from the house at 349 Fort
Elfsborg Road. The change in the overall setting of the house that would occur with the addition of a second cooling
tower is expected to be minimal as compared to the current conditions. However, the existing cooling tower is not in
keeping with the historic agricultural setting of the house and the construction of a new cooling tower would add a
further intrusive element into this landscape. Therefore, using the methodology for evaluating indirect effects
discussed with NJHPO staff members during a March 2015 on-site meeting with PSEG, SHPO, and NRC, the
construction of a new cooling tower could result in an adverse indirect effect on the house at 349 Fort Elfsborg
Road.

Joseph Darkin House (85 Amwellbury Road)

The Joseph Darkin House at 85 Amwellbury Road, is located on the west side of Amwellbury Road, approximately
4 miles northeast of the existing facility (see Figure 4). Looking south and southwest from the house and property,
the existing cooling tower could not be seen (see Figure 7, Photo 4). It would appear that despite the flat and open
landscape between the house and the facility, intervening trees, land, and other obstructions do not afford a view
from the house to the existing facility. Therefore, it is not expected that a new tower would be visible from the
house, and no potential for adverse effects on the Joseph Darkin House have been identified.

Samuel and Sarah Nicholson House (153 Amwellbury Road)

The Samuel and Sarah Nicholson House (a New Jersey/National Register-listed property) is located on the north
side of Amwellbury Road approximately 3.5 miles northeast of the existing facility (see Figure 5 and Figure 8,
Photo 5). Looking south, southwest, and west from the house and property, the existing cooling tower could not be
seen (see Figure 8, Photo 6). It would appear that despite the flat and open landscape between the house and the
facility, intervening trees, land, and other obstructions do not afford a view from the house to the existing facility.
Therefore, it is not expected that a new tower would be visible from the house, and no potential for adverse effects
on the Samuel and Sarah Nicholson House have been identified.




Thanks very much for your time and attention.

Sincerely,

%.1(74?7”49..44_

Molly McDonald, RPA
Technical Director/Architectural Historian

cc. D. Robillard, PSEG
G. Bickle, AKRF
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Figure 6:

Photo 1 - A view looking
south across Mason Point
Road from the house at 116
Mason Point Road. The
existing cooling tower is
visible in the distance.

Photo 2 — Looking
south across Salem-
Fort Elfsborg Road
from the Isaac Smart
House property. The
existing cooling tower
was not seen from

the property.




Figure 7:

Photo 3- A view
looking south
from the rear of
the house at
349 Fort
Elfsborg Road.
The existing
cooling tower is
distantly visible
to the left
(southeast) of
the driveway
(indicated by
the red arrow).

Photo 4 — Looking
southwest from
Amwellbury Road
towards the Joseph
Darkin House at 85
Amwellbury Road.
The existing cooling
tower is located
southwest of the
house, but was not
observed from the
house or property.



Figure 8:

Photo 5- A view
looking north
towards the Samuel
and Sarah Nicholson
House at 153
Amwellbury Road,
which is listed on the
New Jersey and
National Registers of
Historic Places.

Photo 6 — Looking
west from the
Samuel and Sarah
Nicholson House.
The existing
cooling tower did
not appear to be
visible from the
property.




Intensive-Level Survey Form
116 Mason Point Road




New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
Historic Preservation Office Page 1

BASE FORM Historic Sites #:

Property Name: 116 Mason Point Road

Street Address:  Street# 116 Apartment #:
(Low) (High) {(Low) (High)
Prefix: Street Name: Mason Point Road Suffix: Type:
County(s): Salem Zip Code: 08079
Municipality(s): Elsinboro Township Block(s): 00041
Local Place Name(s): Mason Point Lot(s): 3.01
Ownership:: Private USGS Quad(s) Salem

Description: The house at 116 Mason Point Road is a two-story one-room-deep vernacular house
characteristic of the 18™ century vernacular architecture of the region. it is relatively rare in the locality as
an example of early timber-framed vernacular architecture in a locality where the extant early housing
stock is dominated by brick construction. The early wing addition to the house is also typical of
vernacular house development in the 18" and early 19" century. Historic maps and other documentary
sources indicate that the house is historically associated with the Thompson and Patrick families.

Registration and National Historic

Status Dates: tandmark: SHPO Opinion:
National Register: Local Designation:
Salem County CRS;
New Jersey Register: Other Designation: _Eligibility Worksheet
Determination of Eligibility: Other Designation Date: _8/1/1984; 3/14/2003
Photograph:
5" x 3.5" - Please mount photos as indicated.
For portrait oriented photos, mount with the top to the left
Survey Name: _PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New Jersey Date: _May 15, 2015

Surveyor: _Molly McDonald
Organization: _ AKRF, inc. on behalf of PSEG




New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection

Historic Preservation Office Page 2
BASE FORM Historic Sites #:
Location Map: Site Map:

Bibliography/Sources:
(See Continuation Sheet)

Additional Information:

More Research Needed? [X Yes [ No

INTENSIVE LEVEL USE ONLY
Attachments included: ] Building [ Structure [ Object [ Bridge
[JLandscape [ Industry
Within Historic District? [ Yes No
Status: [] Key-Contributing [] Contributing [ Non-Contributing

Associated Archaeological Site/Deposit? [ Yes
(Known or potential Sites - if yes, please describe briefly)



New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection

Historic Preservation Office Page 3

BASE FORM Historic Sites #:

THIS PAGE TO BE COMPLETED ONLY AT INTENSIVE LEVEL
AND
ONLY IF PROPERTY IS A FARM COMPLEX

Historic Farm Name: 116 Mason Point Road

Period of Late
Agricultural Use: 18" c. To 2015 Source (see History section)

Agriculture Type: Unknown
Medium

Remaining Historic Fabric
Acreage: 3.28

Farm Description: The property at 116 Mason Point Road includes a house, likely dating to the late
eighteenth century, and two modern farm buildings. The property is currently 3.28 acres in size but
was once significantly larger. Historic documentation indicates that the house was associated with
the Thompson and Patrick families in the nineteenth century and was farmed by each of these
families. Little information has been found regarding the specific agricultural endeavors associated

with the property historically.



New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
Historic Preservation Office Page 1

BUILDING ATTACHMENT Historic Sites #:

Common Name: 116 Mason Point Road

Historic Name:

Present Use: Residential

Historic Use: Residential

Construction Date: mid to late 18" c. Source: Based on physical characteristics

Alteration Date(s): late 18" early 19" Source: Based on physical characteristics

Designer: Unknown Physical Condition: _Fair

Builder: Unknown ' Remaining Historic Fabric: Medium

Style: Early vernacular

Form: _I-plan Stories: 2
2 ( +3-bay
Type: House Bays: _addition)

Roof Finish Materials: Asphalt

Exterior Finish Materials Wood clapboard

Exterior Description: The house at 116 Mason Point Road is an early wood-frame vernacular house
located on the north side of Mason Point Road a short distance east of Money Island Road. The house
stands only a few yards from the road. It faces south towards the road and is aligned with its roof ridge
parallel to the road. A short driveway/parking area is located west of the house. The house is composed
of four sections: the original (possibly early 18™ century) two-story two-bay section to the east; a slightly
shorter two-story three-bay section in the center; a one-and-a-half-story shed-roofed wood-frame addition
on the west; and a single-story shed-roofed enclosed porch that runs along the first story of the central
and western sections of the residence and probably dates to the first half of the twentieth century. The
original (east) section of the house is of a form typical of early vernacular houses of the locality, standing
two stories high and only two bays wide and two bays deep. A brick interior end-chimney rises from the
east end of its roof ridge. Its side-gable roof is distinguished by a wood cornice. The house is sided in
wood clapboard; its roof is currently clad in asphalt shingles. It stands on a stone foundation. The first
wood-frame addition appended on the west side of the main section has a side-gable roof whose ridge is
aligned with the main section. This portion of the building is also clad in wood clapboard and roofed in
asphalt shingles. A brick interior end-chimney rises from the west end of its roof ridge. Both the west and
south shed-roofed sections are also clad in wood clapboard and their roofs are clad in as phalt shingles.
The south addition, an enclosed porch that appears to be the most recent of the four sections, has
exposed rafter ends and a poured con crete foundation.

The front (south) fagade of the main section of the house has a doorway and window on the lower story
and two windows on the upper story. These apertures are aligned with each other. The doorway, which
occupies the western bay on the lower story, contains a relatively modern glazed wood door. The window
immediately east of it has also been retrofitted with one-over-one-light double-hung sash. The upper-
story windows contain six-over-six-light double-hung wood sash. The wood clapboard siding is missing
from the lower story of the house and a composite material such as plywood sides this portion of the
house. The front doorway is accessed via a small four-step stoop that appears to be a later addition. A
small window is located in the stone foundation of this section. The front facade of the two-story addition
appended on the west has three windows at second story level, each containing six-over-six-light double-
hung sash. The lower story is obscured behind the front enclosed porch. The porch contains a doorway
with a modern screen door and three large window apertures currently sealed behind plastic sheeting.
The enclosed porch extends along the first story of the eastern shed-roofed addition as well. A single
window is visible at second-story level on the front facade of the eastern shed-roofed addition; this
contains six-over-six-light double-hung sash.



New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
Historic Preservation Office Page 2

BUILDING ATTACHMENT Historic Sites #:

The east elevation of the main section of the house maintains its early fenestration pattern. Although a
tarp applied to the exterior obscures the lower southern end of the east elevation, the first and second
stories each appear to contain two windows with the upper story windows aligned with those below them.
Two smaller windows are located at attic level set in slightly towards the center of the elevation. Six-over-
six-light double-hung sash occupy all of the windows on the east elevation. Two small rectangular
windows are located within the foundation wall at basement level.

On the west elevation of the original section of the house, a small window is visibie in the gable field just
below eaves level and just south of center. The window is sealed with plywood. The west elevation of the
gable-roofed addition contains two small windows at attic level. These cannot be clearly seen but appear
to contain six-light fixed sash. The west elevation of the western shed-roofed addition contains two
windows, both sealed with plywood. The adjoining south shed-roofed enclosed porch contains one
window on its west elevation; this contains six-over-six-light double-hung sash.

The rear (north) elevation of the main section of the house has two windows on the upper story and two
windows on the lower story, aligned with each other and each containing six-over-six-light double-hung
sash. The rear wall of the western gable-roofed addition is aligned with that of the main section of the
house. The rear facade of this wing contains a central doorway at ground-story level, which contains a
four-panel wood door. A window is located on either side of the doorway. Three windows are located at
the second-story level, immediately above the windows and door below them. All of the windows on the
rear elevation of this section contain six -over-six-light double -hung sash. On the rear elevation of the
western shed-roofed addition there is a doorway and a window immediately beside it. Another window is
located above the doorway on the upper half-story level. Both of these windows contain six-over-six-light
double-hung sash.

Interior Description:
The interior of the house was not accessed.

Setting: The house is located on the north side of Mason Point Road, set back only a few yards from the
road. The house faces south towards the road and is aligned with its roof ridge oriented east-west. Two
large sycamore trees stand between the house and the road. A short driveway/parking area is located
west of the house. A concrete-block garage and frame drive shed are located beyond the driveway to the
north. A large garden is located to the northeast of the house. Several bushes and trees surround the
house within the flat, open, property on which the house stands. Beyond the immediate surroundings of
the house, the topography in the vicinity is extremely flat and typified by open agricultural fields.

Survey Name: PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New Jersey Date: _May 15, 2015
Surveyor: _Molly McDonald
Organization: _ AKRF, Inc. on behalf of PSEG




New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection

Historic Preservation Office Page 1
BUILDING ATTACHMENT Historic Sites #:
Common Name: Drive Shed
Historic Name: 116 Mason Point Road
Present Use: Drive Shed
Historic Use: Drive Shed
Construction Date: Early 20" c. Source: Based on physical characteristics
Alteration Date(s): Source:
Designer: Unknown Physical Condition: Good
Builder: Unknown Remaining Historic Fabric: Medium
Style: Utilitarian
Form: Stories: 1
Type: Drive Shed Bays: 1
Roof Finish Materials: Not visible

Exterior Finish Materials Vertical board

Exterior Description:

This wood-frame drive shed could only be seen from a distance; therefore,

information that can be provided here regarding its construction characteristics and use are limited (see
Figure 4, Photo 5). The structure is located a short distance northwest of the house. The wood-frame
structure has a front-gable roof, which appears to be clad in metal but cannot be clearly seen. it has one
open drive bay in its front (south) fagade. The building’s construction date is unknown, but appears to date

to the early 20" century.

Interior Description: The interior was not be accessed.

Setting: This building is located northwest of the house at 116 Mason Point Road and west of a larger
garage building. The farm and surrounding area are generally flat and open. T he immediate setting of the
building is within a cluster of trees associated with the house at 116 Mason Point Road.

Survey Name:

PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New Jersey

Date: _May 15, 2015

Surveyor: _Molly McDonald

Organization: _ AKRF, Inc. on behalf of PSEG




New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
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BUILDING ATTACHMENT Historic Sites #:

Common Name: Garage

Historic Name: 116 Mason Point Road

Present Use: Garage
Historic Use: _Garage

Construction Date: Mid- 20" c. Source: Based on physical characteristics
Alteration Date(s): Source:
Designer: Unknown Physical Condition: _Good
Builder: Unknown Remaining Historic Fabric: Medium
Style: Utilitarian
Form: Stories: 1
Type: Garage Bays:
Roof Finish Materials: Not visible

Exterior Finish Materials Concrete block

Exterior Description: This garage could only be seen from a distance; therefore, information that can
be provided here regarding its construction characteristics and use are limited (see Figure 4, Photo 5). The
large front-gable structure is located a short distance northwest of the house. The structure is built of
concrete block with a frame roof, the gable of which appears to be clad in vinyl siding. It has two open drive
bams in its front (south) fagade. The building’s construction date is unknown, but appears to date to the mid
20" century.

Interior Description: The interior was not be accessed.

Setting: This building is located northwest of the house at 116 Mason Point Road and east of a smaller
drive shed building. The farm and surrounding area are generally flat and open. The immediate setting of
the building is within a cluster of trees associated with the house at 116 Mason Point Road.

Survey Name: PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, New Jersey Date: May 15, 2015
Surveyor: _Molly McDonald, AKRF
Organization: _ AKRF, Inc. on behalf of PSEG
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ELIGIBILITY WORKSHEET Historic Sites #:

History:
(See Continuation Sheet)

Significance:

The house at 116 Mason Point Road is a two-story one-room-deep vernacular house characteristic of the 18th
century vernacular architecture of the region. The early wing addition is typical of vernacular house development
in the 18" and early 19" century. The house is somewhat unusual in the locality as an example of early rural
timber-framed vernacular architecture in an area where the extant early housing stock is dominated by brick
buildings. Although research has not yielded an initial construction date for the house and the early history of the
structure remains unclear, documentary sources indicate that the Thompson family and later the Patrick family
inhabited the building in the nineteenth century and farmed the property. The house is important for its association
with the early settlement and early families of the area, as well as an example of early timber-framed vernacular
architecuture in the region.

Eligibility for New Jersey National
and National Registers: [JYes [JNo Register Criteria: XA B Xc XD
Level of Significance X Local X State (1 National

Justification of Eligibility/Ineligibility: Despite some alterations made to the structure in the 20" century, the
house at 116 Mason Point Road appears eligible for the National and New Jersey Registers as an example of
early timber-framed architecture in western New Jersey. The house appears eligible under Criterion A for its
association with the early settlement of western New Jersey, as well as the nineteenth century occupation of the
Thompson and Patrick families. The house appears eligible under Criterion C, as an example of early timber-
framed vernacular architecture likely dating to the mid to late eighteenth century. Lastly, it may be considered
eligible under Criterion D, because although much of the house's early history is not immediately perceptible from
the exterior, important data regarding New Jersey's early timber-framed vernacular architecture may be contained
within the physical fabric of the house. The interior of the house could not be accessed as part of this survey, nor
could the frame of the house be documented or assessed. The archaeological sensitivity of the surrounding
property is not known. Further study of the house's fabric could yield important insights into the history of this
regional vernacular building tradition. The proposed period of significance for the property extends from the
original construction of the building, possibly as early as the mid-eighteenth century through early twentieth
century.

For Historic Districts Only:
Property Count:  Key Contributing: Contributing: Non Contributing:

For Individual Properties Only:
List the completed attachments related to the property’s significance:



New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection’
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ELIGIBILITY WORKSHEET Historic Sites #:

Narrative Boundary Description:

The proposed boundary includes the entirety of the current 3.28-acre parcel boundary on which the house at 116
Mason Point Road is located, including all of Lot 3.01 on Block 41 in Elsinboro, Salem County, New Jersey. It is
located on the north side of Mason Point Road with an address at 116 Mason Point Road.

Survey Name: _PSEG Early Site Permit Application, Salem County, NJ ] Date: May 15, 2015
Surveyor. _Molly McDonald
Organization: _ AKRF, Inc. on behalf of PSEG
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CONTINUATION SHEET Historic Sites #:

History:

Early History of Eilsinboro Township

The earliest European settlement in the region was the New Sweden colony, founded in 1638. The colony
was located along the Delaware River in an area that now includes portions of Delaware, New Jersey, and
Pennsylvania. It was organized by the New Sweden Company, a joint-stock company that received financial
and administrative support from the Swedish government and from Swedish and Dutch investors. The
colony was composed of Swedish, Finnish, and Dutch settlers (Jordan 1995). Elsinboro was first established
as the site of Fort Elfsborg under the supervision of Johan Printz, first royal governor of New Sweden, in
1643 (Lurie and Mappen 2004). Also in the early 1640s, English settlers from New Haven, Connecticut,
settled in Elsinborough, naming it New Haven Colony. These settlers quickly returned to Connecticut
(Shourds 1876: 456). The English settlers were “either driven away by the Swedes and the Dutch or their
numbers were decimated by pleurisy” (Lurie and Mappen 2004: 250).

In 1664, the Duke of York granted joint proprietorship of the land between the Hudson and Delaware
Rivers to Lord John Berkely and Sir George Carteret (Lurie and Mappen 2004). In 1673, the Dutch briefly
reconquered New York colony (which then included the province New Jersey), but the following year they
surrendered it again to the English. In the same year, John Berkeley, weary of the conflict and troubled with
debt, sold his share of the province to two English Quakers, John Fenwick and Edward Byllynge, who
sought to establish a Quaker settlement in the New World. Shortly after they acquired the land, Byllynge
went bankrupt and his share was taken over by the Quaker trustees. Fenwick’s one-tenth share of the land
would eventually become present-day Salem and Cumberland Counties. Fenwick personally relocated to
Salem in the 1670s, encouraging fellow Quakers to emigrate to the area as well (Orr 2006: 25-26).

History of 116 Mason Point Road

The house at 116 Mason Point Road is a timber-framed building bearing distinctive characteristics of local
early vernacular construction. Based on its form and other architectural characteristics, it is believed to
have been constructed in the eighteenth century. Local regional vernacular architecture will be discussed
later in this section. Documentary research has not yet pinpointed a date of construction for the house or a
clear early history. However, research indicates that the house was connected with the Thompson family
and later with the Patrick family.

The 1849 Stansbie wall map of Salem and Gloucester County shows the property containing two principal
structures and labeled with the name W. Thompson. This likely refers to William H. Thompson, (1812-
1888), the son of John Thompson and Esther Nicholson. Esther Nicholson was the daughter of Darkin and
Esther Nicholson of Elsinboro. John Thompson was the son of John and Mary Thompson. According to
Shourds’ history of Salem County, John, was born in 1752, the son of Joshua and Elizabeth Gibson
Thompson (Shourds 1876: 290). Joshua Thompson was born in Elsinboro in 1719, son of Andrew
Thompson. Andrew Thompson was the son of Andrew and Isabella Thompson, who emigrated to the area
from Ireland. In 1677, Andrew Thompson and his brother, John, with their wives and children, set sail from
Dublin on the ship Mary, and landed at Elsinboro Point later that year. Andrew Thompson was appointed
by Fenwick as one fo the Justices of the Peace of the Colony. He and his brother, John, bought half of the
allotment of land purchased from John Fenwick by Richard Guy. Andrew’s portion “was near the mouth of
the Salem Creek.” He built his house there, known as the “emigrant house,” which remained standing until
sometime in the nineteenth century. He died in Elsinboro in 1696, aged roughly 60 years (Shourds 1876:
284).



New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
Historic Preservation Office Page 2

CONTINUATION SHEET Historic Sites #:

Federal censuses show William H. Thompson living in Elsinboro with his wife, Rachel, and other household
members from 1850 through 1870 (almost certainly in the subject house}. William’s wife was the daughter
of Daniel and Mary Nicholson. William H. and Rachel Thompson had no children. The 1850 census shows
the Thompsons living in Elsinboro with real estate valued at $6,000; Thompson'’s profession is listed as
“farmer.” Several other individuals are also listed in the household, but with the exception of a farmhand,
David Bradford, it is not clear what the other household members’ relationship was to the Thompsons.
They included three-year-old George Denn, 40-year-old May Burns and her baby, and eleven-year-old
Josiah Foster. Another Thompson household is shown next door to William H. Thompson’s, which was
headed by his brother, Caspar Thompson. The 1860 federal census shows William and Rebecca Thompson
living with three children named Emma Denn, Margaret Kerr, and Joseph Bacon, as well as a farmhand
named James Counsellor. William H. Thompson's profession is listed as “Mas. Farmer” (master farmer) and
his real estate was valued at $5,000. The couple also appear in the 1870 federal census, apparently in the
same location, with several other household members, some listed as servants or farm laborers. Thompson
died in Elsinboro in 1888 at the age of 76.

The 1876 Evarts & Stewart atlas shows the subject house labeled with the name G.G. Patrick, and also
indicates that the small hamlet in which it was located was at that point called Sharptown. G.G. Patrick may
refer to George G. Patrick, who was born ca. 1850, the son of John Patrick (1815-1859) and Rachel Grier
Patrick (1816-1888). Rachel was the daughter of George and Ruth B. Grier. John Patrick was the son of
Jesse Patrick (1790-1834) and Nancy Ann Hancock Patrick (1791-1885). The 1850 federal census shows
John and Rachel Patrick living with their children in Lower Alloways Creek; John worked as a storekeeper.
Jesse Patrick, John's father (born ca. 1790) was the son (one of six children) of Abner Patrick (born ca.
1754)(originally Fitzpatrick) and Elizabeth Carll (daughter of Jesse and Grace Carll). According to Shourds,
Abner’s grandfather had emigrated to this country from the north of Ireland (Shourds 1876: 51). John and
Rachel Patrick had four children: Richard, George, Charles, and Morris (Shourds 1876: 265). The 1860
federal census indicates that Rachel Patrick (age 42) was living in Salem at that time with her children and
a servant. Her son, George G., was ten years old at this time. Her husband had died a year earlier. No
evidence, with the exception of the name on the Evarts & Stewart map, has been found to indicate that
George G. Patrick lived in Elsinboro. Several directories of second half of the nineteenth century indicate
that he lived in the village of Salem. The 1870 federal census does, however, indicate that Jesse Patrick
(born 1825, the uncle of George G. Patrick and brother of John Patrick} lived in Elsinboro with his wife,
Elizabeth Naylor Patrick, four children, and a farm laborer. It is likely that Jesse Patrick was living in the
subject house at that time. The family does not appear to have remained in Elsinboro for long, however,
appearing in neighboring communities in the preceding and following censuses.

Vernacular Architecture in Western New Jersey

The best recognized and most widely prized early vernacular architecture of Western New Jersey can safely
be considered pattern-brick houses. From the late 17th century through the 18th century, an elaborate,
community-derived tradition of bricklaying flourished in western New Jersey and the Philadelphia area,
primarily in areas with a strong English Quaker influence. The tradition of patterned brickwork, which is
considered one of the great early American regional vernacular building traditions, typically used glazed or
vitrified headers to create a variety of patterns such as diamond-diaper, zig-zag, checkerboard and others.
Early timber-framed buildings in the region during this period have received less attention. Amongst the
relatively few studies that have addressed local timber-framed building traditions during this early period
are two Masters theses: Janet Sheridan’s 2007 thesis entitled Their Houses are Some Built of Timber: the
Colonial Timber-Frame Houses of Fenwick’s Colony, New Jersey; and Matthew Edward Pisarski's 1999 One-
Room Deep Domestic Architecture of Cumberland and Salem Counties, New Jersey. As Sheridan points out,
“The early domestic architecture of Fenwick’s Colony has been analyzed by various scholars, but though
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their contributions are valuable, they have focused almost solely on patterned-brick houses” (Sheridan
2007:16).

In his study, Pisarski evaluates both brick and timber-framed buildings of the period, and focuses on a
particular form that was common in the region both in wood and masonry structures. This was the one-
room-deep house, often two or three bays in width and one room deep, but often two stories in height.
These structures have sometimes been called I-plan houses, due in part to their tall and narrow form. “The
simplest house form recorded in Salem County is a square-walled structure with no partitioning, but two
stories.” The front facades of these structures were typically composed of either three symmetrical bays (a
central doorway flanked by windows) or two bays, with a door occupying one bay and a window occupying
the other. They might have one or two chimneys, which would be placed at the interior gable ends. These
early houses, often built during the first half of the 18t century in the region, were typically expanded in a
predictable manner after their initial construction (with many examples of expansion occurring during the
second half of the 18th century). Expansion often took the form of lateral additions (wings with roof-ridges
aligned with the original section) or, in the case of single-story structures, the addition of an upper story
(Pisarski 1999: 48-9). According to Pisarski, most extant examples of this house form dating to the first half
of the eighteenth century are of brick (sometimes patterned-brick) construction. However, a change began
to occur around the Revolutionary War period: “The largest change was the shift to timber construction in
later one-room deep house construction.” Pisarski cites several examples of timber-framed buildings
constructed in the region from the 1760s through the 1790s that, with the exception of their building
material, mirrored their neighboring brick counterparts in terms of form, plan, and other characteristics.
“There is no documented statement that accounts for this shift from brick to wood construction,” Pisarski
notes but suggests several possibilities: earlier timber-framed buildings may once have existed but not
survived; clay deposits for local brickmaking may have been depleted; the social systems surrounding the
English Quaker-derived brick craftsmanship may have broken down somewhat over the course of the
period and/or the limited pool of brick artisans was no longer in the region; or lastly, brick construction
was increasingly expensive compared to timber construction as the 18t century progressed (Pisarski
1999: 99-100).

In her study, Sheridan concurs that the “invisible” early frame houses of pre-Revolutionary Salem County
are an unresolved conundrum and it is not clear whether survival rates factor in to the apparent dearth of
earlier eighteenth century examples. She cites the lack of comprehensive architectural resources survey
work in the region and the continuing preoccupation with brick examples as a barrier to better
understanding the early development of timber-framed buildings in the area. From documentary sources,
such as tax data, it is clear that by the late eighteenth century, timber-framed buildings were more common
than brick structures in several parts of the region. Furthermore, while timber-framed and log houses were
certainly more common than brick amongst middle and lower classes, both brick and timber houses were
constructed by the elite of the region (Sheridan 2007). In a related paper, Sheridan notes that unlike some
other regions, such as New England, where early settlement was relatively homogenous, Southwestern
New Jersey had already witnessed settlement by numerous ethnic groups including Scandinavians, Dutch,
and English by the beginning of the eighteenth century (Sheridan 2012:4}. Thus, several building traditions
may have influenced local vernacular building in early Southwestern New Jersey. The study and analysis of
early timber-framed building techniques in the region, therefore, has particular potential to yield
information regarding the dissemination and development of carpentry traditions in the New World.
Sheridan’s analysis of case studies in former Fenwick’s Colony identified framing approaches associated
with multiple distinct building traditions. However, her analysis acknowledges that the difficulty of dating
the case study examples with certainty makes it problematic to draw larger conclusions regarding the
development and chronology of timber-framed buildings in the area. Further study of early timber-framed
buildings in the area could yield meaningful information regarding how common timber buildings were in
the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries in Southwestern New Jersey as well as the cultural influence that
shaped their construction technologies. As a timber-framed building with an early form and apparently
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early addition, 116 Mason Point Road represents an important artifact and a candidate for more detailed
study.
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